SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY (MGA)
Board of Directors Regular Meeting - Remote Access
Thursday, December 16, 2021 at 7:00 p.m.
The meeting will be by teleconference pursuant to Government Code §54953(e)(3). The
information below provides an opportunity for members of the Board andthe public to
participate in a simultaneous webcast or to join by telephone.
Webcast (audio and video): https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/143496653
To dial in by phone: United States: +1 (872) 240-3311
Access Code: 143-496-653
AGENDA
1.

Call to Order

2.

Roll Call

3.

Oral Communications Related to Items Not on the Agenda
Issues within the purview of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
(MGA). Guidelines attached.

4.

Consent Agenda (Page 4)
4.1 Approve September 9, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes (no memo)
4.2 Accept Audited 2020/2021 Financial Statements
4.3 Approve 2022 MGA Board Meeting Schedule

5.

General Business (Page 36)
5.1 Adopt Board Resolution No. 21-03 Authorizing Remote Meetings
in Compliance with AB 361
(Page 37) Staff Recommendation
5.2 Approve Creation of a Temporary Board Committee to Develop the
Strategy and Complete Recruitment Process for Administrative and
Planning Services
(Page 43) Staff Recommendation
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5.3 Approve Creation of a Temporary Board Committee to Evaluate and
Select Projects for Upcoming Sustainable Groundwater Management
Program Grant Opportunity
(Page 48) Staff Recommendation
5.4 Approve Resolution to Apply for the 2021 Sustainable Groundwater
Management Grant Program SGMA Implementation – Planning and
Projects Grant
(Page 55) Staff Recommendation
5.5 Approve Definition of Priority Areas and Overall Approach for Metering
Program Plan Participant Inclusion
(Page 58) Staff Recommendation
5.6 Approve Board Meeting Start Times and Break Policy
(Page 63) Staff Recommendation
6.

Informational Updates (Page 64)
6.1 Treasurer’s Report
6.2 Oral Reports
6.3 Annual Status Report on Board FPPC Compliance

7.

Future Agenda Items

8.

Written Communications and Submitted Materials

All written communications from the public received by the MGA are posted on the Board
Meetings page of the MGA website.
9.

Adjournment

Next Board Meeting: March 17, 2022
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GUIDANCE FOR ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS AND DISABILITY ACCESS
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
MGA Board meeting agendas set aside time for oral communications regarding items not on the agenda
but within the purview of the MGA. Oral communications are also heard during the consideration of
an agenda item.
Anyone wishing to provide public comment should come to the front of the room to be recognized by the
Board Chair. Individual comments are limited to three (3) minutes; a maximum time of 15 minutes is
set aside each time for oral communications. The time limits may be increased or decreased at the
Board Chair’s discretion. Speakers must address the entire Board; dialogue is not permitted between
speakers and other members of the public or Board members, or among Board members.
While the Board may not take any action based upon oral communications, an issue raised during oral
communications may be placed on the agenda for a future Board meeting.
Organized groups wishing to make an oral presentation to the Board may contact Laura Partch at 831662-2053 or admin@midcountygroundwater.org, preferably at least two weeks prior to the meeting.
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS
Written communications to the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (MGA) Board may be
submitted as follows:
• Via email: comment@midcountygroundwater.org
• Via mail or hand delivery: MGA Board of Directors, c/o Emma Olin, 5180 Soquel Drive, Soquel,
CA 95073
Deadlines for Submittal:
• Written communications received by 4:00 p.m. on the Tuesday of the week prior to a regularly
scheduled (Thursday) Board meeting will be distributed to the Board and made available on the
MGA’s website at the time the Agenda is posted.
• Written communications received after the 4:00 p.m. deadline will be posted on the MGA
website and Board members informed of the communications at the earliest opportunity.
Please note, communications received after 9:00 a.m. the day before the Board Meeting may not
have time to reach Board members, nor be read by them prior to consideration of an item.
• Written communications received at a Board meeting will be distributed to Board members and
posted on the MGA website at the earliest opportunity.
Any written communication submitted to the Board will be made available on the MGA website at
http://www.midcountygroundwater.org/committee-meetings and constitutes a public record. Please do
not include any private information in your communication that you do not want made available to the
public.
DISABILITY ACCESS: Please contact Laura Partch at admin@midcountygroundwater.org or 831662-2053 for information or to request an accommodation.

Revised June 17, 2021
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SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY
Board of Directors Remote-Access Meeting
Thursday, September 9, 2021 – 7:00 p.m.
MINUTES
1.

Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 7:01 by Chair LaHue.
2.

Roll Call

Directors present: Curt Abramson, David Baskin, Zach Friend, Bruce Jaffe, Manu
Koenig, Tom LaHue, Marco Romanini, and Alternate Director Robert Schultz.
Directors absent: Justin Cummings, Jon Kennedy, Jim Kerr and Rob Marani.
Staff present: Ralph Bracamonte, Ron Duncan, Heidi Luckenbach, Sierra Ryan, Tim
Carson, and Laura Partch.
Others present: Melanie Mow Schumacher, a representative of the Department of
Water Resources, and a member of the public.
3.

Oral Communications Related to Items Not on the Agenda
Issues within the purview of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
(MGA). Guidelines attached.

None.
4.

Consent Agenda
4.1 Approve June 17, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes (no memo)
4.2 Approve Revised MGA Procurement Policy

No Board discussion or public comment.
MOTION: Director Jaffe; Second, Director Baskin. To approve the consent agenda.
Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote; Director LaHue abstained on Agenda
Item 4.1.
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5.

General Business
5.1 Approve First Amended Bylaws

Staff noted that Board approval of the First Amended Bylaws (Bylaws) follows approval of
the First Amended Joint Powers Agreement, which is now final and effective August 10,
2021. The only changes made to the Bylaws since presented to the Board in June involve
the correction of sequential numbering issues. Article 11 of the original Bylaws requires at
least 30 days written notice be given to all members of the Board prior to any amendment.
Notice of the proposed amendments was sent via email to all Directors and Alternates on
August 3, 2021, posted on the MGA website, and included in the August 2021 MGA Eblast.
No public comment at the meeting or Board discussion.
MOTION: Director Baskin; Second, Director Romanini. To adopt a Resolution to amend
the Bylaws and approve the First Amended Bylaws. The motion and Board Resolution
No. 21-01 passed by unanimous by roll call vote.
5.2 Annual Election of Officers by the Board of Directors
Nominations were made for Director Kerr to continue as Secretary, Director Baskin as
Vice Chair, and Director LaHue as Chair. No other nominations were made, and each
Officer was elected for another one-year term.
No public comment or Board discussion.
5.3 Consider Appointment, Effective Date, and Term of Appointment for
the Private Well Owner Directors
Staff stated that the First Amended JPA (JPA) authorizes the member agency Directors to
appoint Private Well Owner (PWO) Directors, and the Bylaws outline the procedures for
establishing their terms. Unless otherwise established by member agency Directors, the
default term of the Board terms is four years. To create staggered terms, two Directors
would have initial terms of two years, and two Directors would have four-year terms. The
establishment of the PWO Director terms must be done by Board resolution.
The current PWO Directors participated in a public solicitation process and have served on
the Board since their appointment in 2016. Staff identified the need for the Board to take
action regarding the PWO Directors under the Bylaws by one of two pathways: to reappoint
the currently-serving directors and establish their terms, or to initiate the process set out
in the Bylaws to solicit and appoint new directors.
If the current slate of PWO directors are reappointed, the proposed starting date for the new
terms is January 2022, to coincide with member agency appointments.
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If the Board decides to begin the solicitation process, this would require more time as well
as the formation of a temporary Board committee, and so the proposed starting date for the
new terms is March 2022. Staff noted the following agenda item requests approval of a
temporary Board committee on the initial development of the Metering Program. If
approved, that committee would run for up to six months, which would allow the current
PWO Directors to participate on that committee regardless of whether the Board opts to
initiate a solicitation process to solicit and appoint new directors to serve on the Board.
Staff and the Board expressed appreciation for the contributions of the current PWO
Directors. Each PWO Director is willing to continue serving on the Board, and, if
reappointed, they are in unanimous agreement on the staggered terms: Directors Abramson
and Kennedy would serve the four-year terms, and Director Kerr and Alternate Director
Schultz would serve the two-year terms.
No public comment at the meeting; submitted written comments were distributed to the
Board and posted on the MGA website.
MOTION: Director Jaffe; Second, Director Romanini. To approve by Board resolution
the appointment of Private Well Owner Directors Abramson and Kennedy to four-year
terms, and Director Kerr and Alternate Director Shultz to two-year terms, effective
January 2022. Member Agency Directors approved the motion and Board Resolution No.
21-02 by unanimous roll call vote.
5.4 Approve Formation of Temporary Board Committee for Initial
Development of the Non-De Minimis Metering Program; Approve
Metering Program Guidelines; and Provide Direction on Program
Incentives
Staff noted that the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Basin (Basin) Groundwater
Sustainability Plan (GSP) states that the MGA will institute a metering program for nonde-minimis pumpers to fill data gaps on the amount of pumping in the Basin. Current
information relies primarily on estimates from aerial imagery for agricultural parcels, along
with pumping information from small water systems and a few institutional users. The
collection of this additional data will improve the accuracy of model projections.
The work of an original temporary Board committee resulted in the selection of the
consulting firm Geosyntec to develop the MGA Non-De Minimis Metering Program
(Metering Program). Staff appreciated the benefit of having both PWO and member agency
Directors serving on the selection committee, and now seeks approval for a second
temporary Board committee for the initial development of the Metering Program. In
addition, staff requests Board input on the draft guidelines set out in the GSP, and seeks to
gauge the willingness of the Board to consider the use of financial incentives for
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participation in the Metering Program.
The Board discussed the membership of both temporary Board committees, the anticipated
charge of the new committee, the draft metering guidelines, the types of meters, possible
costs to participants, and the possibility of financial incentives for participation in the
Metering Program. Regarding any financial incentives and potential costs, the Board
requested that staff provide the Board with information on the number, size, and impact on
potential participants.
No public comment at the meeting; submitted written comments were distributed to the
Board and posted on the MGA website.
MOTION: Director Romanini; Second Director Baskin. To direct staff and the
temporary Board committee on the development of the Non De-Minimis Metering
Program to consider financial incentives and bring recommendations to the Board.
Motion passed by unanimous roll call vote.
MOTION: Director Baskin; Second Director Romanini. To approve draft guidelines for
the Metering Program with the condition that if the guidelines are unworkable, the
temporary Board committee would return to the Board with workable guidelines. The
motion failed by roll call vote with Directors Abramson, Jaffe, Romanini and Schultz
opposed.
Board Question: Does staff require any additional information or interim guidelines in order
to move forward with the program?
• Staff is seeking Board approval prior to initiating targeted public outreach. Board
approval of recommended guidelines at its December meeting would meet current
scheduling for program development and general outreach.
MOTION: Director Jaffe; Second Director Abramson. To direct the temporary Board
committee on the development of the Non De-Minimis Metering Program to evaluate
the proposed Metering Program guidelines and report back to the Board with
recommendations. Motion passed by unanimous roll call vote.
MOTION: Director Romanini; Second, Director LaHue. To approve the creation of a
temporary Board committee on the initial development of the Non De-Minimis Metering
Program, and to appoint Directors Abramson, Kennedy, Kerr, Jaffe and Romanini to the
committee. Motion passed by unanimous by roll call vote.
6.

Informational Updates
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6.1 Status Update on GSP Implementation
Member agency staff provided updates on GSP implementation, with a focus on the Group
2 project and management actions identified in GSP Section 4. Staff stated that the MGA
decided, and GSP reflects, that the member agencies are undertaking the projects to move
the Basin towards sustainability. The updates can be heard from minutes 59:15 to 2:12:05
of the meeting recording posted on the Board Meetings page of the MGA website.
Board question: Are there any updates on legal actions regarding any of these projects?
•

Staff reported a single litigant has filed four lawsuits challenging various approvals of
PWS and has sought five injunctions to stop the project. To date courts have denied or
dismissed all lawsuits and rejected all efforts to stay the project. A case challenging the
environmental impact report is now final. Two other lawsuits have been dismissed; one
is now under appeal and it is unknown if the second will be appealed. A fourth lawsuit
remains in process. Soquel Creek Water District remains committed for the long haul
to serve the needs of both its customers and the Basin, and these lawsuits have cost the
District close to $1 million dollars in legal fees.

6.2 Treasurer’s Report
No public comment at the meeting; written comments submitted on this item were
distributed to the Board and posted on the MGA website.
6.3 Report on Contract Change Order for the Regional Water
Management Foundation (RWMF)
No public comment at the meeting; written comments submitted on this item were
distributed to the Board and posted on the MGA website.
7.

Future Agenda Items

Staff reported that the prior Board request to consider a change in the start time of the
meetings would be brought to the Board at the next meeting after additional guidance is
received from the State regarding remote-access meetings.
A request was made to discuss a policy on breaks during Board meetings.
8.

Written Communications and Submitted Materials

Written communications are posted on the Board Meetings page of the MGA website.
9.

Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 9:15.
Next Board Meeting:

December 16, 2021
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December 16, 2021
MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Subject:

Agenda Item 4.2

Title:

Accept Audited 2020/2021 Financial Statements

Attachments:
1. Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency Annual Financial Report for the
Year Ended June 30, 2021
2. Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency Management Report, June 30,
2021
Attached for the Board’s review is the Agency’s Annual Financial Report for fiscal
year 2020/21, as well as the Management Report prepared by our audit firm Davis
Farr, LLP. The financial report is prepared in accordance with Government
Accounting Standards. The Agency received an unqualified opinion, meaning the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency as of June 30, 2021, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows are in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.
Recommended Board Action
1. BY MOTION and roll call vote, accept the audited Financial Report for the
period ending June 30, 2021.

By

___________________________________
Leslie Strohm
Treasurer
Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
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SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY
Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
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Board of Directors as of June 30, 2021
Name

Title

Tom LaHue

Member Agency

Chairman

David Baskin

Vice Chairman

Current
Term

Soquel Creek Water District 01/21 – 01/22
City of Santa Cruz

01/21 – 01/22

Jim Kerr

Secretary

Private Well Representative

05/16 – 03/22

Jon Kennedy

Director

Private Well Representative

05/16 – 03/22

Curt Abramson

Director

Private Well Representative

05/16 – 03/22

Marco Romanini

Director

Central Water District

03/18 – 03/22

Zack Friend

Director

County of Santa Cruz

01/18 – 01/22

Bruce Jaffe

Director

Soquel Creek Water District

01/21 – 01/22

Justin Cummings

Director

Manu Koenig

Director

County of Santa Cruz

01/21 – 01/22

Robert Marani

Director

Central Water District

03/18 - 03/24

City of Santa Cruz

01/21 – 01/22

Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
Leslie Strohm, Treasurer
5180 Soquel Drive
Soquel, California 95073
(831) 475-8500
www.midcountygroundwater.org
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SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY
Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Governing Board
Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
Santa Cruz, California
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the
Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (the “Agency”) as of and for the year ended June
30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State
Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards
require that we plan and perform our audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Santa Cruz
Mid-County Groundwater Agency, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial
position, and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America

1
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Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We previously audited Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency’s 2020 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial
statements in our report dated December 23, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020 is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived.
Other Matter
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 9, 2021, on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Agency’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Irvine, California
December 9, 2021

2
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Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
As management of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (Agency), we offer
readers of the Agency’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the
financial activities and performance of the Agency for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021
and 2020. Please read it in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in
the accompanying basic financial statements, which follow this section.
Financial Highlights



The Agency’s net position decreased 13.53% or $266,096 to $1,700,950. In fiscal year
2020, the Agency’s net position increased 243.44% or $1,394,298 to $1,967,046.



The Agency’s total revenues decreased 100% or $650,415 to $0. In fiscal year 2020,
the Agency’s total revenues decreased 45.36% or $540,005 to $650,415.



The Agency’s total expenses decreased 33.54% or $162,815 to $322,613. In fiscal
year 2020, the Agency’s total expenses decreased 48.54% or $457,883 to $485,427.

Using This Financial Report
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statements of Net Position
and the Statements of Activities provide information about the activities and performance of
the Agency using accounting methods similar to those used by private sector companies. The
Statements of Net Position includes all of the Agency’s investments in resources (assets),
deferred outflows of resources, obligations to creditors (liabilities), and deferred inflows of
resources. It also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating the capital
structure of the Agency and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Agency. All
of the current year’s revenue and expenses are accounted for in the Statements of Activities.
These statements measure the success of the Agency’s operations and can be used to
determine the Agency’s profitability and credit worthiness.
Financial Analysis of the Agency
Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities
One of the most important questions asked about the Agency’s finances is, “Is the Agency
better off or worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” A Statement of Net Position and a
Statement of Activities report information about the Agency in a way that helps answer this
question.
These statements include all assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources, using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
used by most private sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are
taken into account regardless of when the cash is received or paid.
These two statements report the Agency’s net position and changes in them. One can think
of the Agency’s net position – the difference between assets and deferred outflows of
resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources – as one way to measure the
Agency’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the
Agency’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors, such as changes
in the organizational agreements to assess the overall health of the Agency in future periods.
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic
financial statements can be found on pages 9 through 11.

3
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Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
Statement of Net Position
Condensed Statement of Net Position

Assets:
Current Assets
Total assets

2021

2020

$ 1,806,646
1,806,646

2,006,514
2,006,514

105,696
105,696

39,468
39,468

1,700,950
$ 1,700,950

1,967,046
1,967,046

Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net position:
Unrestricted
Total net position

Change
(199,868)
(199,868)

66,228
66,228

(266,096)
(266,096)

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the Agency, assets exceeded liabilities by $1,700,950 and
$1,967,046 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
2021
Revenues:
Operating revenues
Total operating revenues
Expenses:
Operating expenses
Total operating expenses
Non-operating revenues:
Grant revenue
Total non-operating revenues
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of period
Prior period adjustment (Note 3)
Net position, end of period

2020

Change

650,415
650,415

(650,415)
(650,415)

322,613
322,613

485,427
485,427

(162,814)
(162,814)

56,517
56,517
(266,096)

205,793
205,793
370,781

(149,276)
(149,276)
(636,877)

572,748
1,023,517
1,967,046

1,394,298
(1,023,517)
(266,096)

$

-

1,967,046
$ 1,700,950

The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position show how the
government’s net position changed during the fiscal years. In the case of the Agency, net
position decreased 13.53% or $266,096 to $1,700,950, as a result of ongoing operations. In
fiscal year 2020, the Agency’s net position increased 243.44% or $1,394,298 to $1,967,046,
as a result of ongoing operations.
Total revenues decreased 100% or $650,415 to $0, due primarily to a decrease in dues
contributed by each member agencies. In fiscal year 2020, total revenues decreased 45.36%
or $540,005 to $650,415, due primarily to a decrease in dues contributed by each member
agencies.
4
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Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the operating revenues of $0 and $650,415,
respectively, consist of the dues contributed by each member agency. Each member agencies
are invoiced a percentage of the projected budget for the fiscal year based on the following
schedule:
Member Agency

2021

Soquel Creek Water Distric t
Central Water District
City of Santa Cruz
County of Santa Cruz
Total

2020
0%
0
0
0

70 %
10
10
10

0%

100 %

Total expenses decreased 33.54% or $162,814 to $322,613, due primarily to an increase of
$18,698 in groundwater management and a decrease of $181,512 in general and
administrative expense. In fiscal year 2020, total expenses decreased 48.54% or $457,883
to $485,427, due primarily to decreases of $455,942 in groundwater management expense
and $1,941in general and administrative expense.
Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position
Management is unaware of any conditions which could have a significant impact on the
Agency’s current financial position, net position, or operating results in terms of past, present,
and future.
Requests for Information
The Agency’s basic financial statements are designed to present users with a general overview
of the Agency’s finances and to demonstrate the Agency’s accountability. If you have any
questions about the report or need additional information, please contact the Agency’s
Treasurer, Leslie Strohm at Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency, 5180 Soquel Drive,
Soquel CA 95073 or (831)475-8500.

5
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SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021
(with prior year data for informational purposes)

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalent (Note 2)
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

$

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Total current liabilities
Net position:
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

2021

2020

1,740,890
64,077
1,679
1,806,646

1,891,207
113,549
1,758
2,006,514

105,696
105,696

39,468
39,468

1,700,950
1,700,950

1,967,046
1,967,046

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
6
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SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021
(with prior year data for informational purposes)

2021
Operating revenues:
Membership revenue

$

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Groundwater management
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Total operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues:
Grant revenue
Total non-operating revenues
Change in net position

-

650,415

-

650,415

154,199
168,414

135,501
349,926

322,613

485,427

(322,613)

164,988

56,517

205,793

56,517

205,793

(266,096)

Net position, beginning of period
Prior period adjustment
Net position, end of period

2020

$

370,781

1,967,046
-

572,748
1,023,517

1,700,950

1,967,046

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY
Statement of Cash Flows
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021
(with prior year data for informational purposes)

2021
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from members
Payments to vendors for materials and services

$

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Grant revenue
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

2020

(256,306)

650,415
(672,544)

(256,306)

(22,129)

105,989

1,115,761

105,989

1,115,761

(150,317)

1,093,632

1,891,207

797,575

1,740,890

1,891,207

Reconciliation of operating income(loss) to net cash
provided by(used) in operating activities:
Operating income(loss)

$

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) in assets:
Prepaid expenses
Increase(decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

(322,613)

164,988

79

(359)

66,228

(186,758)

(256,306)

(22,129)

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:
There were no significant noncash investing, capital or financing activities during the years ended
June 30, 2021 or 2020.

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
8
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SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(1)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity
On March 17, 2016, the Central Water District, the City of Santa Cruz, the County of Santa
Cruz, and the Soquel Creek Water District (Members) entered into a joint powers agreement
creating the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (Agency). Each Member is a local
agency, as defined by the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 (SGMA), duly
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California, and each
Member can exercise powers related to groundwater management. The purpose of the
agreement is to create a groundwater sustainability agency by June 30, 2017 to manage
groundwater basins designated by the California Department of Water Resources as medium
and high priority basins. The Agency is a basin consolidation of all or parts of four existing
groundwater basins: Soquel Valley, West Santa Cruz Terrace, Santa Cruz Purisima Formation,
and Pajaro Valley Groundwater Basins.
Under the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of 2000 (Act), including the Marks-Roos Local Bond
Pooling Act of 1985 (Government Code sections 6584, et seq.), the Agency is authorized to
issue bonds, and under certain circumstances, to purchase bonds issued by, or to make loans
to, the Members for financing public capital improvements, working capital, liability and other
insurance needs or projects whenever doing so results in significant public benefits, as
determined by the Members. The Act further authorizes and empowers joint powers
authorities to sell bonds that are issued or purchased to public or private purchasers at public
or negotiated sales.
SGMA requires the adoption of a groundwater sustainability plan (GSP) by January 31, 2020,
for all medium and high priority basins identified as being subject to critical conditions of
overdraft. The Members will develop the GSP and manage the Basin pursuant to SGMA.
The term of the agreement shall remain in effect until terminated by unanimous written
consent of all Members, except during the outstanding term of any Agency indebtedness.
Upon termination of the agreement, the assets shall be distributed in proportion to the
contributions of each Member agency.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus
The Agency is accounted for as an enterprise fund in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. Enterprise funds are used to
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to a private
business enterprise, where the expenses, of providing goods and services to the general public
are recovered through user charges, or where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, or other purposes. Because the Agency is
accounted for as an enterprise fund, the Agency uses the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting for financial statement reporting purposes.
Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned, and expenses
are recognized in the period incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
With the measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of these
funds are included in the Statement of Net Position.

C. Financial Reporting
The Agency’s basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
9
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SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(1)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position

1. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported changes in the Agency’s
net position during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Substantially, all of the Agency’s cash is held in a financial institution bank account. The
Agency considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents.

3. Revenue Recognition
Membership dues are recognized as revenue at the time each member agency is invoiced or
when a resolution is approved by the Board during the year.

4. Net Position/Fund Balances
The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position categories are follows:



Net investment in capital assets – consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by any outstanding debt against the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets.



Restricted net position – consists of constraints placed on net position use
through external constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Unrestricted net position – consists of the net position balance that does not
meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assets components of
net position.



5. Comparative Data
Selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the accompanying
financial statements. This information has been included for comparison purposes only
and does not represent a complete presentation in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with
the government’s prior year financial statements, from which this selected financial data
was derived.
(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2021 is classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

1,740,890

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2021 consists of the following:
Deposits with financial institutions

$

1,740,890

10
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SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able
to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
The California Government Code and the Agency’s investment policy do not contain legal or
policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other
than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a
financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law
(unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in
the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by public agencies.
As of June 30, 2021, bank balances are federally insured up to $250,000. The remaining
balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the collateralized securities
are not held in the Agency’s name.
(3) Contingencies
Litigation
In the ordinary course of operations, the Agency is subject to claims and litigation from outside
parties. After consultation with legal counsel, the Agency believes the ultimate outcome of
such matters, if any, will not materially affect its financial condition.

11
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Report on Internal Controls and Compliance
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards
Governing Board
Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
Santa Cruz, California
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the Santa Cruz Mid- County Groundwater Agency (Agency) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprises the Agency’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 9, 2021.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered the
Agency’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
12
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audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for
any other purpose.

Irvine, California
December 9, 2021

13
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AGENDA ITEM 4.2.2

December 9, 2021
Davis Farr LLP
Irvine, California
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements
of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (“Agency”), which comprise the respective
financial position of the business-type activities as of June 30, 2021, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing opinions as to
whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are
material. Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or
misstatement of accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it
probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be
changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is
monetarily small in amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.
We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of December 9, 2021 the following
representations made to you during your audit.
Financial Statements
1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement
letter dated September 28, 2021 including our responsibility for the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and for
preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable
criteria.
2) The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S.
GAAP and include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the
primary government and all component units required by generally accepted
accounting principles to be included in the financial reporting entity.
3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
4) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance
of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.
5) Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value, are reasonable.
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6) Related
party
relationships
and
transactions,
including
revenues,
expenditures/expenses, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and
amounts receivable from or payable to related parties have been appropriately
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
7) The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have
been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
8) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Agency is contingently liable, if
any, have been properly recorded or disclosed.
9) We have provided you with:
a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation,
and other matters.
b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit.
c) Unrestricted access to persons within the Agency from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.
d) Minutes of the meetings of Board of Directors or summaries of actions of recent
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.
10) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the financial statements.
11) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.
12) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the Agency’s and
involves
•
•
•

Management,
Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

13) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
Agency’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees,
regulators, or others.
14) We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance
with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose
effects should be considered when preparing financial statements.ee
15) We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and
assessments whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial
statements.
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16) We have disclosed to you the identity of the Agency’s related parties and all the related
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.
Government-specific
17) There have been no communications from regulatory agencies
noncompliance with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

concerning

18) We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other
studies related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have
been implemented.
19) The Agency has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets, liabilities, or equity.
20) We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt
contracts, and legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in
separate funds.
21) We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely
to have occurred, of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations
that we believe have a material effect on the financial statements or other financial
data significant to the audit objectives, and any other instances that warrant the
attention of those charged with governance.
22) We have identified and disclosed to you all instances, which have occurred or are likely
to have occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements
that we believe have a material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts or other financial data significant to the audit objectives.
23) We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely
to have occurred, of abuse that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the
financial statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives.
24) There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and
regulations (including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending
budgets), provisions of contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any
related debt covenants whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the
financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on
noncompliance.
25) As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and
related notes. We acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit
services, including that we assume all management responsibilities; oversee the
services by designating an individual, preferably within senior management, who
possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and
results of the services performed; and accept responsibility for the results of the
services. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those financial
statements and related notes.
26) The Agency has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.
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27) The Agency has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have
a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.
28) The financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an
equity interest, and properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related
organizations.
29) The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 34.
30) All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement Numbers 34 and 37
for presentation as major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that
are presented as major are particularly important to financial statement users.
31) Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and
unrestricted) are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.
32) Investments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by
endowments are properly valued.
33) Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.
34) An actuary has been used to measure pension and OPEB liabilities and costs.
35) We believe actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension and OPEB
liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate in the
circumstances.
36) Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs
in the statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.
37) Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program
revenues, general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or
contributions to permanent fund principal.
38) Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately
classified and reported.
39) Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified
as to risk and are properly disclosed.
40) Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized,
reported, and, if applicable, depreciated.
41) We have appropriately disclosed the Agency’s policy regarding whether to first apply
restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net
position is properly recognized under the policy.
42) We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources (that is,
restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for
expenditures for which more than one resource classification is available. That policy
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determines the fund balance classifications for financial reporting purposes.
43) We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI).
The RSI is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of
measurement and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period.
We have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying
the measurement and presentation of the RSI.

Signature:________________________
Title: _________Treasurer____________

Signature:_________________________
Title: ______Executive Staff___________
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December 16, 2021
MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Subject:

Agenda Item 4.3

Title:

Approve 2022 MGA Board Meeting Schedule

The Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (MGA) First Amended Joint
Powers Agreement provides that the Board shall establish its meeting schedule on
an annual basis. Pursuant to § 3.1 of the First Amended Bylaws, the Board’s meeting
schedule is to be adopted by the Board at its final regularly-scheduled meeting of
each calendar year, or earlier if desired.
The MGA Board meets on the third Thursday of the month. Staff proposes the
following Board meeting dates for the MGA in 2022: March 17th, June 16th,
September 15th, and December 15th.
Recommended Board Action
1. By MOTION and roll call vote, approve the 2022 MGA Board Meeting Schedule.

By

___________________________________
Tim Carson
Program Director
Regional Water Management Foundation
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December 16, 2021
MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Subject:

Agenda Item 5.1

Title:

Adopt Board Resolution No. 21-03 Authorizing Remote Meetings in
Compliance with AB 361

Attachments
1. Resolution 21-03, Authorizing Remote Teleconference MGA Board
Meetings Pursuant to AB 361
2. Recommendation from County Health Officer Dr. Gail Newell
Background
Beginning in March 2020, Governor Newsom issued a series of Executive Orders in
an effort to contain the spread of the COVID-19 virus. These orders modified certain
requirements of the Brown Act regarding the public meetings of local agencies to
permit virtual/remote meetings via teleconference.
On September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed into law Assembly Bill (AB) 361,
which enables local public agencies to continue to use teleconferencing without
complying with certain Brown Act provisions. Effective October 1, 2021, AB 361
permits a legislative body subject to the Brown Act to continue to meet virtually if it
complies with specified requirements codified at Government Code § 54953(e). These
provisions will sunset on January 1, 2024.
Section 54953(e) provides that if a legislative body intends to continue meeting
remotely without compliance with other provisions of the Brown Act, the legislative
body shall, not less than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time under §
54953(e), and every 30 days thereafter, make the following findings:
1. The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of
emergency, and
2. Any of the following circumstances exist:
a. The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the
members to meet safely in person, or
b. State or local official continue to impose or recommend measures to
promote social distancing.
If these findings are made, a legislative body must continue to provide advance notice
of public meetings and post meeting agendas as required by the Brown Act. AB 361
includes additional requirements regarding public comment and teleconferencing.
Most are already established protocols at MGA Board remote meetings, and staff will
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Board of Directors
December 16, 2021
Page 2 of 2
ensure that any necessary changes are incorporated into the logistics of remote
meeting conducted pursuant to AB 361.
Discussion
MGA Legal Counsel recommends that the MGA Board, at its December meeting,
adopt a resolution that includes the required findings as well as a statement that the
Board plans to meet virtually at its next meeting. Draft Board Resolution No 21-03
is attached.
Also attached is a recommendation from County Health Officer Dr. Gail Newell that
meets the Brown Act’s requirements for allowing the December meeting to take place
via teleconference.
Counsel recognizes that the requirements of § 54953(e) are not designed for a
legislative body, such as the MGA, that meets quarterly. In light of this, Counsel
advises that if the Board intends to continue meeting remotely under § 54953(e), that
the Board decide at the December meeting to either: 1) adopt a new resolution each
time the Board meets, in substantial compliance with § 54953(e), or 2) to convene a
special meeting every 30 days to adopt a new resolution, in strict compliance with the
statute.
Recommended Board Actions
1. By MOTION and roll call vote, adopt Resolution 21-03, authorizing a virtual
public meeting in accordance with Government Code § 54953(e); and
2. By MOTION and roll call vote, approve an approach for adopting subsequent
resolutions required by § 54953(e).

By_______________________________
Tim Carson
Program Director
Regional Water Management Foundation
On behalf of the MGA Executive Staff
Ron Duncan, General Manager, Soquel Creek Water District
Ralph Bracamonte, District Manager, Central Water District
Heidi Luckenbach, Interim Water Director, City of Santa Cruz
Sierra Ryan, Water Resources Manager, County of Santa Cruz
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AGENDA ITEM 5.1.1

RESOLUTION NO. 21-03
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SANTA
CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY ADOPTING
FINDINGS PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361 TO AUTHORIZIE
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS AS A RESULT OF THE
CONTINUING COVID-19 PANDEMIC STATE OF EMERGENCY AND
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR SOCIAL DISTANCING

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater
Agency (“MGA Board”) is committed to providing public access to its meetings as
required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown Act”) (Cal. Gov. Code § 54950 et seq.);
and
WHEREAS, the MGA Board is a legislative body under the Brown Act as defined
under Government Code Section 54952(b); and
WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill 361
(“AB 361”) as urgency legislation effective immediately that amended Government
Code Section 54953 to permit legislative bodies subject to the Brown Act to continue
to meet under modified teleconferencing rules provided they comply with specific
requirements set forth in the statute; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to AB 361 and Government Code Section 54953(e)(1)(A), a
legislative body may meet under the modified teleconferencing rules during a
proclaimed state of emergency, and where local officials have imposed or
recommended measures to promote social distancing; and
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of State of
Emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, which remains in effect; and
WHEREAS, on September 30, 2021, Santa Cruz County Public Health Officer Dr.
Gail Newel strongly recommended that legislative bodies in Santa Cruz County
continue to engage in physical/social distancing by meeting via teleconference as
allowed by AB 361 and confirmed that she will regularly review and reconsider this
recommendation and notify the public when it is no longer recommended; and
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Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
Board of Directors
Resolution No. 21-03

WHEREAS, pursuant to AB 361 and Government Code Section 54953(e)(3), within
30 days of the date the legislative body first holding a teleconferenced meeting under
the modified rules a legislative body can continue to hold such teleconference
meetings provided it has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency
and determined either that the state of emergency continues to directly impact the
ability of the members to meet safely in person or that local officials continue to
recommend measures to promote social distancing; and
WHEREAS, on December 16, 2021, the MGA Board held its initial teleconference
meeting under AB 361; and
WHEREAS, the MGA Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the current state
of emergency and finds that the COVID-19 pandemic continues to directly impact the
ability of members of the public to participate safely in person and further finds that
the Santa Cruz County Public Health Officer continues to recommend measures to
promote social distancing; and
WHEREAS, in the interest of public health and safety, and due to the emergency
caused by the spread of COVID-19, the MGA Board deems it necessary to utilize the
modified teleconferencing rules set forth in AB 361;
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Santa Cruz Mid-County
Groundwater Agency resolves as follows:
Section 1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are
incorporated into this Resolution by reference.
Section 2. Acknowledgement of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency.
The MGA Board has reconsidered the state of emergency proclaimed by the Governor
of the State of California and finds that the state of emergency continues to directly
impact the ability of the MGA Board and members of the public to meet safely in
person.
Section 3. Acknowledgement of Local Health Order Promoting Social Distancing.
The MGA Board determines that a local health order related the need for social
distancing related to the COVID-19 pandemic remains in effect.
Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The MGA Board is authorized to carry
out the intent and purpose of this Resolution by conducting open and public meetings
in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable
provisions of the Brown Act.
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Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
Board of Directors
Resolution No. 21-03

Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately
upon adoption and shall be effective until the next scheduled meeting, when the MGA
Board will reconsider the circumstances of the COVID-19 state of emergency and, if
necessary, adopt subsequent findings to continue holding teleconference meetings in
accordance with Government Code Section 54953(e)(3).
Passed and adopted at a meeting of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater
Agency on December 16, 2021, by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Directors
Directors (or None)
Directors (or None)
Directors (or None)
APPROVED:

ATTEST:

________________________
Thomas R. Lahue
Board Chair

___________________________
Jim Kerr
Board Secretary
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AGENDA ITEM 5.1.2

County of Santa Cruz
HEALTH SERVICES AGENCY
POST OFFICE BOX 962, 1080 Emeline Ave., SANTA CRUZ, CA 95061-0962
TELEPHONE: (831) 4544000 FAX: (831) 454-4488 TDD: Call 711

Public Health Division
HEALTH OFFICER RECOMMENDATION FOR SOCIAL DISTANCING
(CONTINUED REMOTE MEETINGS FOR LEGISLATIVE BODIES)

COVID-19 disease prevention measures endorsed by the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention include vaccinations, facial coverings, increased indoor ventilation, handwashing, and
physical/social distancing (particularly indoors). Since early in the COVID-19 pandemic, local
legislative bodies such as boards, commissions, committees, and councils have successfully held public
meetings remotely via teleconferencing. I strongly recommend continued use of teleconference meetings
as a social distancing measure to help control transmission of the COVID-19 virus. Public meetings
bring together many individuals, from multiple households, in a single indoor space for an extended
period of time. Utilizing teleconferencing options for public meetings is an effective and recommended
social distancing measure to facilitate legislative business and participation in public affairs while at the
same time helping to prevent the spread of COVID-19.
This recommendation is intended to satisfy the provision of the Brown Act (specifically,
Government Code Section 54953(e)(l)(A)), which allows local legislative bodies in the County of Santa
Cruz to use teleconferencing to enable remote meetings under specified circumstances. I will continue to
evaluate this recommendation on an ongoing basis and will communicate when it is appropriate to
withdraw the recommendation.
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Health Officer of the County of Santa Cruz

Dated: September 30, 2021
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December 16, 2021
MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Subject:

Agenda Item 5.2

Title:

Approve Creation of a Temporary Board Committee to Develop the
Strategy and Complete Recruitment Process for Administrative and
Planning Services

Attachments:
None
Background
Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (MGA or Agency) as a locally controlled
groundwater sustainability agency (GSA) is responsible for developing and
implementing a groundwater sustainability plan (GSP) to meet the sustainability
goal of the basin. The MGA uses a collaborative staffing model to accomplish its work.
Professional and technical staff from MGA member agencies provide staff leadership,
management, work products, and administrative support for the MGA. MGA member
agency executive staff, comprised of the member agency general managers and
directors, provide staff support for MGA officers and Board members.
At the March 17, 2016 Board Meeting, the Board agreed to engage the Regional Water
Management Foundation (RWMF, a subsidiary of the Community Foundation of
Santa Cruz County) as a partner in supporting administrative and planning activities
of the MGA, as their primary goal is to be a foundation of support to local agencies
that are collaborating on protecting our resources. This was done through an MOA
with the RWMF with a term ending at GSP completion. In subsequent years, the
RWMF was engaged through a sole source process based on their work under the
MOA.
The role of the RWMF currently includes grant writing and administration, agenda
preparation, meeting minutes, website updates, e-blast distribution, and annual
budget preparation. During GSP development that role was expanded to include a
Principal Planner position to lead the GSP development and public outreach. The
Principal Planner position ended with the submittal of the GSP.
Discussion
Though the Agency has now transitioned from the role of GSP development to the
role of GSP implementation, the MGA has not re-evaluated what its current needs
are in terms of administrative services, or whether they are currently being met
through the existing model. Likewise, the current staffing model may be inadequate
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to facilitate the MGA in its obligation to implement SGMA and meet the objective
outlined in the adopted and approved GSP. Staff feels that now is an appropriate time
for such analysis, and to develop an Request for Qualifications (RFQ) based the
desired outcomes.
Staff would like this process to move at a pace that would allow for a new contract to
be in place by July 1, 2022. This will allow the contractor(s) to be available to
administer the next round of grant funding that the MGA is anticipating. The Santa
Margarita Groundwater Agency is currently undertaking a similar process and there
may be opportunities to partner with them on this process to provide mutual cost
savings.
The staff recommends creating an ad-hoc committee, which would be tasked with
determining the current staffing and administrative services needs, developing an
RFQ to meet those needs, and selecting the best proposal to meet these needs, and
present the Board with their findings and recommendations.
Recommended Board Action:
1. BY MOTION and roll call vote, Approve Creation of a Temporary Board
Committee to Develop the Strategy and Complete Recruitment Process for
Administrative and Planning Services.

By

___________________________________
Sierra Ryan
Water Resources Manager
County of Santa Cruz

On behalf of the MGA Executive Staff
Ron Duncan, General Manager, Soquel Creek Water District
Ralph Bracamonte, District Manager, Central Water District
Heidi Luckenbach, Interim Water Director, City of Santa Cruz
Sierra Ryan, Water Resources Manager, County of Santa Cruz
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December 16, 2021
MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Subject:

Agenda Item 5.3

Title:

Approve Creation of a Temporary Board Committee to Evaluate and
Select Projects for Upcoming Sustainable Groundwater Management
Program Grant Opportunity

Attachments:
1. MGA Comment Letter on Draft Guidelines and Proposal Solicitation
Package
2. DWR Draft Application Evaluation Criteria (Table 7)
3. SGMA Draft Implementation Eligibility Checklist (Table 2)
Background
The California Department of Water Resources’ (DWR) Sustainable Groundwater
Management (SGM) Grant Program announced a new funding opportunity for
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) planning and implementation.
In October 2021, DWR released the draft Guidelines (GL) and draft Proposal
Solicitation Package (PSP); these are available online at: water.ca.gov/work-withus/grants-and-loans/sustainable-groundwater. DWR solicited comments on the draft
GL/PSP and both may be subject to change pending DWR response to comments. The
MGA submitted a comment letter on the draft PSP/GL (Attachment 5.3.1). DWR’s
current tentative schedule has the final GL/PSP to be published in December.
Round 1 is to award over $150 million by spring 2022 to regional groundwater
agencies in critically overdrafted (COD) basins for planning and implementation
projects to help comply with SGMA. As proposed in the draft GL/PSP, Round 1
funding awards of up to $7.6 million per COD Basin are available for Groundwater
Sustainability Plan (GSP) planning, reporting and implementation activities. Unlike
prior SGM grants, no local cost share/funding match is required. Applications are
due by January 31, 2022.
Project Review Committee and Process Overview
The draft GL/PSP require the applicant (in our case, the MGA) to utilize a project
review committee to evaluate potential projects included in the MGA’s GSP according
to specific SGM Grant Program criteria. Note, the term “projects” is used broadly to
cover activities associated with the planning and implementation of an adopted GSP.
Specifically, the draft PSP sets out the following steps an applicant must take in order
to apply for the Round 1 grant funds. The following descriptions were modified from
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the PSP to remove descriptions that are not applicable to the MGA, for example
requirements for an applicant with multiple GSAs in a single Basin.
1. The applicants should develop a project review committee responsible for
completing a self-evaluation of a project using the scoring criteria outlined in
the Draft GL/PSP Table 7) (Attachment 5.3.2). The project review committee
should include a representative for each entity within a GSA, and/or another
method where all interested parties have an equal vote.
2. The project review committee can either:
a. Develop one consensus scoring self-evaluation for each project; or,
b. Complete an independent scoring criterion and then use the average as
the final score; or,
c. Have one entity that is not related to the project to conduct an
independent review of another entities project and have that one score
as the final; or,
d. Another un-biased review process predetermined by the GSA.
The scoring criteria (Table 7; Attachment 5.3.1) is provided on the SGM Grant
Program’s website at, www.water.ca.gov/sgmgrants. DWR’s proposed scoring
criteria cannot be edited in any way.
3. Once the final score(s) is obtained for each project, the projects should be
ranked based upon the scoring criteria and listed highest to lowest.
4. If the project review committee determines that lower scoring projects should
be higher on the list due to available funding, accessibility to the site, or
already completed environmental/ permitting/design, then the project review
committee must be responsible for fully documenting and justifying why a
lower ranking project was included in the proposal versus a higher ranking
project.
5. The applicant must provide a resolution that has been adopted by the
applicant’s governing body designating an authorized representative to submit
the application and execute an agreement with the State of California. (Note,
the MGA’s resolution is meeting Agenda Item 5.4.)
6. The applicant must complete the Eligibility Self-Evaluation form located on
the SGM Grant Program’s website at www.water.ca.gov and submit the
Eligibility Self-Evaluation form with the Spending Plan (note, as of the drafting
of this memo, DWR has not yet released the Spending Plan template). PSP Table
2 (Attachment 5.3.3) is an example of the eligibility questions included within
the Eligibility Self-Evaluation form.
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7. The applicant must prepare the Spending Plan and include the scoring criteria
sheet(s) per recommended project, review notes, and other justification, along
with the resolution(s) and Eligibility Self-Evaluation form, and submit the
plan prior to noon on January 31, 2022.
Eligible Project Types
Eligible projects include those activities associated with the planning and
implementation of an adopted GSP and that are listed within an adopted GSP.
Activities must be completed by June 30, 2025. Eligible activities and project types
include:
• Activities and/or tasks that consist of the development of groundwater
recharge projects with surface water, stormwater, recycled water, and other
conjunctive use projects;
• Projects that prevent or clean up contamination of groundwater that serve as
a source of drinking water;
• Projects and programs that support water supply reliability, water
conservation, and water use efficiency and water banking, exchange, and
reclamation;
• Geophysical investigation(s) of groundwater basins to identify recharge
potential; early implementation of existing regional flood management plans
that incorporate groundwater recharge; or projects that would complement
efforts of a local GSP, that provide for floodplain expansion to benefit
groundwater recharge or habitat; and
• Revisions, updates, and/or modifications to a GSP.
Discussion
This grant provides an excellent opportunity to obtain funding to support planning
and implementation activities consistent the with MGA’s approved GSP. Staff
requests that the Board approve the formation of a temporary Board Committee to
evaluate, prioritize and select the activities and projects identified in the GSP to
include in the MGA’s proposal. The Committee will conduct a process that meets the
requirements of final GL/PSP.
Article 12 of the MGA’ First Amended Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) provides that
the Board may establish an ad hoc committee to assist in carrying out the work of the
MGA. The JPA requires that each committee have a Board director as chair and
requires that committee members be approved by the Board. Section 5.1 of the MGA’s
First Amended Bylaws permits the establishment of temporary Board committees
composed entirely of Board members to facilitate the conduct of its work. Temporary
Board committees require a specific charge, are not to exceed six months, and are not
subject to the Brown Act unless they include more than six Directors as committee
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members. Board committees are to provide regular updates to the full Board on their
activities and the progress of their work.
The charge of this specific temporary committee is to:
1) Meet with staff to review and discuss the final GL/PSP;
2) Reach consensus upon a process to evaluate and select activities and projects
consistent with the requirements of the final GL/PSP;
3) Carry out the agreed upon process (e.g., evaluation, scoring, ranking, etc.) to
select the planning and implementation activities and projects to be included
in the MGA’s grant proposal;
4) Provide direction to staff, as needed, to enable the completion of the proposal
elements (e.g., Eligibility Self-Evaluation Form, Spending Plan, etc.); and,
5) Oversee the successful completion and submittal of the grant proposal to DWR.
Based upon the draft GL/PSP timeline, the duration of this committee is
approximately six weeks; the duration may extend longer (but less than six months
in total) if the final GL/PSP extends the proposal deadline beyond January 30, 2022.
Staff recommends that the committee include five (5) representatives consisting of a
representative of each Member Agency and one Private Well Owner Director. Staff
from the member agencies, the Regional Water Management Foundation, and
Montgomery & Associates will provide support to the temporary committee. The
temporary committee will report back to the Board at a future Board meeting(s).
Based upon the activities and projects identified in the MGA’s GSP, staff proposes to
develop an initial recommendation on a suite of activities and projects for the
committee to consider as it carries out the evaluation and selection process as
specified in the final GL/PSP. An initial staff recommendation is that the committee
prioritize the inclusion of the MGA’s core eligible activities that are otherwise funded
via the Member Agencies contributions. Examples include, but are not limited to,
activities such as: GSP planning and reporting and the associated staffing and
consultant support for planning and technical support (e.g., 5-Year GSP Evaluation
due in 2025); ongoing Basin monitoring and related activities (e.g., data coordination,
Data Management Systems; and airborne electromagnetic seawater intrusion
surveys (e.g., SkyTEM). With a potential award of $7.6M, after allocating funding for
these tasks through June 2025, there will be funding remaining to support the
implementation of selected Project and Management Actions (PMA) identified in the
GSP.
While the MGA will serve as the Grantee, an individual Member Agency advancing
a PMA listed in the GSP (e.g., Soquel Creek Water District’s Pure Water Soquel; City
of Santa Cruz Aquifer Storage and Recovery, etc.) would assume the responsibilities
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related to the project implementation as well as the sole responsibility for project
related implementation funding not covered by the grant. This approach is
conceptually consistent with the prior Board discussion and direction at its meeting
on November 15, 2018, at which the Board’s viewpoint of the MGA’s role was as a
basin-planning agency that would play a limited role in funding projects and/or
management actions. This grant provides an opportunity for the MGA to access
funding to advance projects and/or management actions, without having to fund
them.
Lastly, the proposed approach is informed the draft GL/PSP. DWR has
acknowledged the potential that there may be revisions from the draft to the final
version GL/PSP in response to comments. Staff will support the temporary committee
in conducting a process to evaluate, prioritize and select projects through a process
that meets the requirements of final GL/PSP so that the MGA can successfully submit
a proposal prior to the application deadline and does not miss this opportunity.
Recommended Board Actions
1. BY MOTION and roll call vote, approve the creation of a Temporary Board
Committee authorized to carry out the charge as defined in this memo for the
upcoming Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Grant proposal, with the
Committee consisting of up to five (5) Directors with up to one Director per Member
Agency and one Private Well Owner Director; and,
2. BY MOTION and roll call vote, appoint representatives to serve on the
Temporary Board Committee.

By_______________________________
Tim Carson
Program Director
Regional Water Management Foundation
On behalf of the MGA Executive Staff
Ron Duncan, General Manager, Soquel Creek Water District
Ralph Bracamonte, District Manager, Central Water District
Heidi Luckenbach, Interim Water Director, City of Santa Cruz
Sierra Ryan, Water Resources Manager, County of Santa Cruz
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November 24, 2021
Sustainable Groundwater Management (SGM) Grant Program
California Department of Water Resources
Attn: SGM Grant Program Manager, Ms. Kelley List
Submitted via email to: sgwp@water.ca.gov
Re: Comments on Draft 2021 Sustainable Groundwater Management (SGM) Grant
Program Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) Implementation
Guidelines and Proposal Solicitation Package (PSP)
Dear Ms. List and SGM Program Staff:
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Draft 2021 SGMA Implementation Guidelines
(Guidelines) and Proposal Solicitation Package (PSP). The Santa Cruz Mid-County
Groundwater Agency (MGA) appreciates the work of Department of Water Resources (DWR)
staff on the development of these guidelines and the upcoming review of received comments.
Our comments based upon the draft Guidelines for Round 1 Implementation for Critically
Overdrafted (COD) Basins include:
1) Support for the approach taken for the funding allocation,
2) Proposed revisions to language that appears to limit funding eligibility for actions to
benefit groundwater recharge that do not involve “floodplain expansion,”
3) In alignment with the Governor’s approval of Senate Bill 170, establish the start date for
costs to be eligible for reimbursement as September 23, 2021.
A comment based upon the information presented by DWR at the virtual webinar on November
16, 2021 is:
4) Support for the Round 1 Option 2 allocation.
The MGA commends DWR’s proposed approach to allocate the funds in Round 1 equally to all
COD Basins. All Basins categorized as “critically overdrafted” share an immense need to take
immediate action in the implementation of the GSPs. The allocation of approximately $7.6
million to all of the eligible Basins highlights DWR’s recognition of need across COD Basins and
acknowledgment that Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) proposing to implement
projects and management actions already identified in an approved GSP should not require an
overly cumbersome grant application. We strongly support the proposed approach and a
funding allocation of up to $7.6M for the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Basin.
While we recognize the importance of floodplain management as a multi-benefit water supply
strategy in the San Joaquin Valley (SJV) and elsewhere in the state, it is also important to
recognize that this strategy is not equally applicable to all COD Basins. As proposed, the
Guidelines (Section B, Item 1.) state that a minimum of roughly 50% ($3.7M) shall be used for
tasks and activities including implementing groundwater recharge via strategies linked to
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regional flood management plans and/or floodplain expansion – strategies that are not priorities
for all COD Basins. The approved Santa Cruz Mid-County Basin Groundwater Sustainability
Plan proposes groundwater recharge projects but does not include any substantial projects
using floodplain recharge because there are no suitable floodplains in the Basin in which this
strategy is feasible.
Funding only certain strategies to achieve sustainability across varied basins runs counter to a
founding principal of SGMA as stated by then-Governor Jerry Brown that “groundwater
management in California is best accomplished locally.”
We suggest DWR modify the Guidelines/PSP as follows to allow GSAs the flexibility to prioritize
projects and spending to achieve sustainability in their respective basins:
1. Remove the restrictions on the use of funds for specific project types. Specifically, revise the
Guidelines (Page 6, Section B, Item 1. Bullet 3. “Projects that would…”) to remove the
requirement for “floodplain expansion” and broaden the eligible tasks and activities to
include project and management actions in an approved GSP that benefit groundwater
recharge or habitat.
Or, alternatively,
2. Within the Guidelines, Section B, Item 1., add language to specify that the requirements on
the eligible uses for a minimum of $3.7 million for the tasks and activities specified in the
Draft Guidelines only apply to Basins in the San Joaquin Valley. The funding legislation (SB
170) clearly states that funding directed to projects that benefit groundwater basins in the
San Joaquin Valley address the specific purposes in the Guidelines (Page 6, Section B,
bulleted list). That limitation should not apply the use of funds for otherwise eligible tasks
and activities in the Santa Cruz Mid-County Basin and other basins outside the San Joaquin
Valley.
3. Establish the start date for eligible costs to begin September 23, 2021, so that GSA’s
proactively implementing eligible tasks and activities in an approved GSP may seek
reimbursement for those activities.
We also wish to convey that based upon the information presented by DWR at the virtual
webinar on November 16, 2021:
4. We support the Round 1 Option 2 allocation methodology that would allow non-SJV COD
Basins an award of up to $7.6M.
We strongly recommend revising the Guidelines Section B, Item 1. SGMA Implementation
for COD Basins (Round 1) so that GSAs are able to propose the highest priority projects
and management actions to achieve sustainability in their respective basins.
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We greatly appreciate the opportunity to provide input on the guidelines before their adoption,
and look forward to continuing to collaborate with DWR in providing for the sustainable
management of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Basin. Please contact me if you have
any further questions.

Sierra Ryan
Basin Point of Contact
BasinPOC@midcountygroundwater.org
(831) 454-3133
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AGENDA ITEM 5.3.2
TABLE 7 – APPLICATION EVALUATION CRITERIA
Section
Name

Q#

Questions

Possible
Points

1

Was a description of the proposed Project or Component provided? Did it explain why
this Project or Component was chosen over all others identified in the Plan in terms
of benefits provided, communities served, measurable objectives, minimum
thresholds, plan implementation timeline, and feasibility?
• No funds will be awarded without clear justification for the proposed
tasks/subtasks.

4

General

2

Does the Project or Component provide a description of quantifiable benefits? Was an
explanation of the benefits that are expected to be realized from the Project or
Component provided, along with how those benefits will be evaluated and quantified?
• To obtain full points, 3 or more quantifiable benefits must be identified and fully
supported with backup documentation.

4

General

3

Does the proposal demonstrate the goals, objectives, and needs of the proposed
Project or Component and how the proposed Project or Component meet those?

3

4

Was there a regional and Project map(s) depicting the site location, current
conditions, and benefitting areas?
• The information should be clear and easy to read. If not, the point will not be
given.

2

5

Does the project benefit an Underrepresented Community (-ies)? Was there a
map(s) depicting the Underrepresented Community (-ies) that the project will
benefit? Does the project benefit an SDAC? Was there a map(s) depicting the
SDAC(s) that the project will benefit? Please provide the amount of funding that will
benefit both the Underrepresented Community and SDAC.
• No points will be given if a map(s) is not provided.

6

Will the Project or Component positively impact issues associated with small water
systems or private shallow domestic wells (e.g., groundwater contamination
vulnerability, drawdown, etc.)? Was justification such as domestic well census
results, water system maps, service area maps, etc. provided? Does the Project or
Component help address the needs of the State Water Board’s SAFER Program?

7

How does the proposed Project or Component address the Human Right to Water (AB
685 Section 106.3)? How will the Project or Component support the established
policy of the State that every human being has the right to safe, clean, affordable,
and accessible water adequate for human consumption, cooking, and sanitary
purposes?

General

General

General

General

General

SGM Implementation Proposal Solicitation Package

Scoring Guidance
• 4 – Fully addressed
• 3 – Mostly addressed, with minor details
not included or unclear
• 2 – Mostly addressed, with significant
details missing or unclear
• 1 – Marginally addressed
• 0 – Not addressed
• 4- At least three quantifiable benefits with
explanations and supporting documents
• 3 – Two quantifiable benefits with
explanations and supporting documents.
• 2 - Two quantifiable benefits lacking
explanations and supporting documents.
• 1 - One quantifiable benefit with
explanations and supporting documents.
0 – Benefits provided, but are not explained
or quantified.
• 3 – Fully addressed
• 2 – Mostly addressed, with minor details
not included or unclear
• 1 – Marginally addressed
• • 0 – Not addressed
• 2 – Provided and all necessary
information provided
• 1 – Provided but missing some
information
• 0 – Not provided

3

• 3- Project benefits an SDAC(s)
• 2- Project benefits Underrepresented
Community
• 1 – Project partially benefits either
• 0 – Project does not benefit either

2

• 2 – Fully addressed
• 1 – Mostly addressed, with minor details
not included or unclear
• 0 – Not addressed

3

• 3 – Fully addressed
• 2 – Mostly addressed, with minor details
not included or unclear
• 1 – Marginally addressed
• 0 – Not addressed
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2

• 2 – Contacted the CCC and using their
services
• 1 – Contacted the CCC, included response
from CCC, but not using their services
• 0 – Did not contact the CCC or does not
demonstrate they were contacted

3

•
•
•
•

General

8

Did the applicant contact the California Conservation Corp (CCC) to obtain their
service for the Project or Component and provide the emailed response from the CCC
within the backup documentation?
• To obtain points, a full response from the CCC must be required.

Scope of Work

9

Did the proposal provide a description of the tasks/subtasks that will be completed
as part of this grant Project?
• No funds will be awarded without clear justification for the proposed
tasks/subtasks.

Budget

10

Is a budget summary table provided? Is the budget reasonable for the project? Is
the budget table tasks/subtasks provided in the scope of work coincide with the
tasks/subtasks in the budget and schedule tables? Is local cost share included?
•
Local cost share is not required but necessary to obtain full points.

3

• 3 – Local cost share is provided and
budget is consistent and feasible
• 2 – Budget is consistent and feasible
• 1 – Budget is consistent but not feasible
• 0 – Not consistent and feasible

Schedule

11

Is the tasks/subtask in the schedule table consistent with those listed in the budget
table and within the description in the application? Is the schedule feasible?

1

• 1 – Consistent and feasible
• 0 – Not consistent and feasible

Total Range of Possible Points

3
2
1
0

–
–
–
–

Fully addressed
Mostly addressed
Marginally addressed
Not addressed

0-30
(a) Average of Questions 1 – 9 for Multiple Component
Applications
(b) Total Score for Questions 10 and 11
Total Points Overall Project:
TOTAL FUNDING RECOMMENDED:

SGM Grant Program’s Proposal Solicitation Package 2021

$
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AGENDA ITEM 5.3.3
TABLE 2 – SGM GRANT PROGRAM’S SGMA IMPLEMENTATION ELIGIBILITY CHECKLIST
Criteria
Type
Applicant
Eligibility

Proposal
Eligibility

Project
Type
Eligibility
1

Eligibility Criteria

Place to
Provide
Information

Is the applicant eligible?

Self-Certification
Form

Agricultural Water Management Compliance
Link: https://water.ca.gov/Programs/Water-Use-And-Efficiency (2015
and/or 2020 AWMPs are applicable).
California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring (CASGEM)
Compliance
Link: https://water.ca.gov/Programs/GroundwaterManagement/Groundwater-Elevation-Monitoring--CASGEM.
Basin Prioritization information can be found at:
https://water.ca.gov/Programs/Groundwater-Management/BasinPrioritization
Climate Change Compliance

Self-Certification
Form

Consistency with the Delta Plan

Self-Certification
Form

Groundwater Management Compliance,
SGMA Compliance

Self-Certification
Form

Open and Transparent Water Data

Self-Certification
Form

Public Utilities and Mutual Water Companies Compliance

Self-Certification
Form

SWRP Compliance SB 985
Link:
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans
/swrp/
Surface Water Diverter Compliance

Self-Certification
Form

Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction Compliance

Self-Certification
Form

Urban Water Management Compliance
Link: https://water.ca.gov/Programs/Water-Use-And-Efficiency/UrbanWater-Use-Efficiency/Urban-Water-Management-Plans. (2015 and/or
2020 UWMPs are applicable).
Water Metering Compliance

Self-Certification
Form

Only one application per basin OR
Applicant is acting as the sole GSA over multiple basins

Criteria Met
(Yes, No, or
NA1)

Self-Certification
Form

Self-Certification
Form

Self-Certification
Form

Self-Certification
Form
NA

Does the proposal include design, construction, operation, mitigation,
or maintenance of Delta conveyance facilities?

GRanTS
Application

Does the proposal include acquisition of water except for projects that
will provide fisheries or ecosystem benefits or improvements that are
greater than required current applicable environmental mitigation
measures or compliance obligations?
Does the proposal include any share of the costs of remediation
recovered from parties responsible for the contamination of a
groundwater storage aquifer?
Is the project eligible?

GRanTS
Application
GRanTS
Application
NA

NA = not applicable

SGM Grant Program’s Proposal Solicitation Package 2021
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December 16, 2021
MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Subject:

Agenda Item 5.4

Title:

Approve Resolution to Apply for the 2021 Sustainable Groundwater
Management Grant Program SGMA Implementation – Planning and
Projects Grant

Attachments:
1. Draft MGA Board Resolution No. 21-04
This memo incorporates information provided for Agenda Item 5.3 regarding the
Sustainable Groundwater Management Grant Program’s Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act (SGMA) Implementation – Planning and Projects Grants (2021
SGMA Implementation Grant).
An application for the 2021 SGMA Implementation Grant requires an MGA Board
resolution approving the application. MGA Board Resolution No. 21-04, attached,
includes the language required by the Department of Water Resources for a
resolution submitted with a 2021 SGMA Implementation Grant.
Recommended Board Action
1. BY MOTION and by roll call vote, approve MGA Board Resolution No. 21-04
authorizing the submittal of an application on behalf of the MGA for the 2021 SGMA
Implementation Planning and Projects Grant.

By_______________________________
Tim Carson
Program Director
Regional Water Management Foundation
On behalf of the MGA Executive Staff
Ron Duncan, General Manager, Soquel Creek Water District
Ralph Bracamonte, District Manager, Central Water District
Heidi Luckenbach, Interim Water Director, City of Santa Cruz
Sierra Ryan, Water Resources Manager, County of Santa Cruz
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December 16, 2021
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SANTA CRUZ MIDCOUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY
RESOLUTION NO. 21-04
Resolved by the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency, that an application be made
to the California Department of Water Resources to obtain a grant under the 2021
Sustainable Groundwater Management (SGM) Grant Program SGMA Implementation –
Planning and Projects Grant pursuant to the California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate,
Coastal Protection, and Outdoor Access For All Act of 2018 (Proposition 68) (Pub. Resource
Code, § 80000 et seq.) and the California Budget Act of 2021 (Stats. 2021, ch. 240, § 80) and
to enter into an agreement to receive a grant for the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater
Agency SGMA Implementation – Planning and Projects Grant. The Board Chair of the Santa
Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency or the General Manager of Soquel Creek Water
District is hereby authorized and directed to prepare the necessary data, conduct
investigations, file such application, and execute a grant agreement and any future
amendments (if required), submit invoices, and submit any reporting requirements with the
California Department of Water Resources. Passed and adopted at a meeting of the Santa
Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency on December 16, 2021.
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Directors
Directors (or None)
Directors (or None)
Directors (or None)

Authorized Original Signature:

_________________________________

Printed Name: Dr. Thomas LaHue
Title: Board Chair

CERTIFICATION
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and
regularly adopted at a meeting of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency held on
December 16, 2021.
Original Signature: _________________________________
Printed Name: Mr. Jim Kerr
Title: Board Secretary
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December 16, 2021
MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Subject:

Agenda Item 5.5

Title:

Approve Definition of Priority Areas and Overall Approach for Metering
Program Plan Participant Inclusion

Attachments:
1. PDF slides (2021-12-16_Metering Plan Criteria for Inclusion.pdf)
Background
The Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) states that groundwater extraction
metering program will apply to non-de minimis users expected to extract more than
5 acre-feet per year and non-de minimis users expected to extract more than 2 acrefeet per year that are located in priority areas. Per the GSP, priority areas are to be
defined in the Groundwater Extraction and Metering Program Plan with approval
from the Board. Attached for the Board’s review are slides that describe the proposed
policy for defining priority areas and metering program participants.
Discussion
Geosyntec considered impacts from pumping in the Basin on interconnected streams,
sea water intrusion, regional persistent pumping depressions, and applicability and
adaptability of the policy to future conditions in their evaluation of defining the
priority management areas. The objective of the policy is to support the collection of
groundwater extraction data that is comprehensive in capturing both a large
percentage of the groundwater extracted by non-de minimis users and sensitive areas
that in areas with high risk of Undesirable Results, as defined by the Sustainable
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) and the GSP.
The following policy for defining priority areas for metering is proposed:
1. Parcels with estimated water use of more than 2 acre-feet per year located
within 1,000 feet of interconnected surface water as defined by the GSP; and
2. Parcels with estimated water use of more than 2 acre-feet per year where the
groundwater elevation is less than 50 feet above mean sea level based on the
Fall 2005 groundwater contours (GSP Figure 2-24 and extended as shown in
Metering Plan figure).
3. Priority area designation shall be reviewed and revised as part of the 5-year
GSP update based on new data or changes in conditions in the Basin.
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4. SC MGA retains the right to make case-by-case decisions on Metering Program
participation.
Recommended Action:
1. BY MOTION and roll call vote, approve Definition of Priority Areas and Overall
Approach for Metering Program Plan Participant Inclusion.

By

___________________________________
Sierra Ryan
Water Resources Manager
County of Santa Cruz

On behalf of the MGA Executive Staff
Ron Duncan, General Manager, Soquel Creek Water District
Ralph Bracamonte, District Manager, Central Water District
Heidi Luckenbach, Interim Water Director, City of Santa Cruz
Sierra Ryan, Water Resources Manager, County of Santa Cruz
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In consideration for metering
• >2 AFY use estimated
• 58 parcels (50 owners)

Defining
Metering Plan
Participants (nonde minimis users)

Group 1: Metering required by GSP
• >5 AFY use estimated
• 30 parcels (26 owners)
• Captures 85% of water use from parcels
with >2AFY demand
Group 2: Priority areas
• In a priority area with > 2 AFY use estimate
• Board is requested to approve the priority
area definition
59 of 72

Group 2: Priority area definition

• Considered proximity to:

Priority Area
Definition

•
•
•
•

Surface water w. groundwater interactions
Coast, areas of concern for SWI, depth of wells
Persistent pumping depressions
Flexibility and applicability in the future

• Proposed in GSP:

• >2 AFY use estimate AND
• 1,000 ft buffer from gw connected surface water
• OR area with groundwater elevation below 50 ft msl
• Additional 9 parcels (8 owners)
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• Future-proof management area criteria:

Priority Area
Definition

• Use less that 50 ft msl groundwater
elevation from Fall 2005 in Purisima A Unit
(Fig. 2-24 in GSP)
• Specify metering plan including criteria for
metering will be updated every 5 years w.
GSP to account for changes in basin
conditions such as persistent pumping
depressions, SWI, new data
• Include disclaimer that GSA will make caseby-case decisions based on the spirit of the
policy when warranted
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Proposed policy for defining priority areas for
metering:
1. Parcels with estimated water use of more than 2 acre-feet per year
located within 1,000 feet of interconnected surface water as defined
by the GSP; and
2. Parcels with estimated water use of more than 2 acre-feet per year
where the groundwater elevation is less than 50 feet above mean sea
level based on the Fall 2005 groundwater contours (GSP Figure 2-24).
3. Priority area designation shall be reviewed and revised as part of the
5-year GSP update based on new data or changes in conditions in the
Basin.
4. SC MGA retains the right to make case-by-case decisions on Metering
Program participation.
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December 16, 2021
MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Subject:

Agenda Item 5.6

Title:

Approve Board Meeting Start Times and Break Policy

Earlier this year, Directors requested the Board consider earlier meeting start times
as well as an instituting short breaks during meetings. Since its inception, the Board
of Directors of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (MGA) has held its
meetings starting at 7:00 p.m. on the third Thursday of the month in which a meeting
is scheduled. Currently, there is no protocol for taking short breaks during meetings.
Due to COVID-19, Board meetings have been conducted remotely since early 2020.
The location(s) for in-person meetings in 2022 is not yet determined. If the Board
preference for the start time for meetings conducted remotely differs from the start
time for in-person meetings, the Board should provide such direction to staff for
planning purposes.
Executive Staff has no recommendation on the start time or protocols on short breaks.
Recommended Board Action
1. BY MOTION and roll call vote, approve any decisions made by the Board of
Directors with regard to the meeting start time(s) and implementation of a
protocol for short breaks during meetings.

By

___________________________________
Tim Carson
Program Director
Regional Water Management Foundation
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December 16, 2021
MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Subject:

Agenda Item 6.1

Title:

Treasurer’s Report

Attachments:
1. Treasurer’s Report for the Period Ending November 30, 2021
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for September, October and November 2021.
These reports contain three sections:
•

•

•

Statement of Changes in Revenues, Expenses and Net Position
o This interim financial statement provides information on the revenue
that has been invoiced to the member agencies and the expenses that
have been recorded as of the period ending date.
Statement of Net Position
o This interim financial statement details the cash balance at Wells Fargo
Bank, the membership revenue still owed through accounts receivable,
prepaid expenses such as insurance, and the resulting net income as
reported on the Statement of Changes in Revenues, Expenses and Net
Position from the preceding page.
Warrants
o The list of warrants reflects all payments made by the MGA, either by
check or electronic means, for the period covered by the Treasurer’s
Report.

The Treasurer’s Report will be provided at each board meeting according to statutory
requirement and to promote transparency of the agency’s financial transactions.
Recommended Board Action
1. Informational, no action necessary.

By

___________________________________
Leslie Strohm
Treasurer
Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
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Treasurer's Report
Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
For the period ended November 30, 2021

Prepared by

Leslie Strohm, Treasurer
Prepared on

December 8, 2021

65 of 72

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
September - November, 2021

Total
INCOME
Total Income
GROSS PROFIT
EXPENSES
5100 Groundwater Management Services
5110 Grndwtr Mgmt - Groundwater Monitoring
5200 Rain & Stream Gage Supplies
5210 Rain & Stream Gage Services
5315 Office Services
5340 Computer Services
5355 Insurance
5410 Outreach Supplies
5415 Outreach Services
5515 Audit & Accounting Services
5520 Legal Services
Total Expenses
NET OPERATING INCOME
OTHER INCOME
4400 Grant Revenue

0.00
3,080.00
38,443.34
3,800.96
3,965.01
129.00
679.29
843.75
211.46
62.97
3,500.00
1,500.00
56,215.78
-56,215.78
-6,198.22

Total Other Income

-6,198.22

NET OTHER INCOME

-6,198.22

NET INCOME

Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency

$ -62,414.00
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Statement of Net Position
As of November 30, 2021

Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
1100 Wells Fargo Business Checking
Total Bank Accounts
Other Current Assets
1400 Prepaid Expenses
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

1,970,505.81
1,970,505.81
447.92
447.92
1,970,953.73
$1,970,953.73

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2100 Accounts Payable

36,370.77

Total Accounts Payable

36,370.77

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
3100 Retained Earnings
Net Income
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency

36,370.77
36,370.77
1,700,949.69
233,633.27
1,934,582.96
$1,970,953.73

67 of 72

3/6

Warrants
September - November, 2021

Date

Transaction Type

Num Name

Memo/Description

Clr

Amount

Bill Payment (Check)
11/17/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

Errol L Montgomery &
10253 Associates Inc

-3,080.00
-3,080.00

11/17/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

10254 Geosyntec Consultants, Inc

-5,248.63
-5,248.63

11/17/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

10255 In-Situ Inc

-3,800.96
-3,800.96

11/17/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

10256 Soquel Creek Water District (2) 0000260

-331.45
-331.45

11/17/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

10257 Trout Unlimited Inc

-3,965.01
-3,965.01

10/21/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

10251 ACWA/JPIA

Member# S073

-1,125.00
-1,125.00

10/21/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

10252 Geosyntec Consultants, Inc

-2,443.93
-2,443.93

Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency

68 of 72

4/6

Date

Transaction Type

10/13/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

Num Name

Memo/Description

Clr

Errol L Montgomery &
10249 Associates Inc

Amount

-850.00
-850.00

10/13/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

10250 Soquel Creek Water District (2) 0000260

-225.95
-225.95

09/03/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

County of Santa Cruz (County
10245 Counsel)

-1,875.00
-1,875.00

09/03/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

Errol L Montgomery &
10246 Associates Inc

R

-940.00
-940.00

09/03/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

10247 Soquel Creek Water District (2) 0000260

R

-109.99
-109.99

09/03/2021

Bill Payment (Check)

County of Santa Cruz Health
10248 Services Agency

-59,184.38
-59,184.38

Expense

Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
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Date

Transaction Type

09/07/2021

Expense

Num Name
US003Hrsg0 Google - Online Payments

Memo/Description

Clr

G Suite Subscription

R

Amount
-72.00

Google Payment - G Suit

Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency

72.00
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December 16, 2021
MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Subject:

Agenda Item 6.3

Title:

Annual Status Report on Board FPPC Compliance

Attachment:
1. 2021 MGA Board - FPPC Compliance Tracker
Directors of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (MGA) Board of
Directors are local officials that must comply with requirements under the California
Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) and the Political Reform Act of 1974.
These requirements include the annual filing of the Form 700 Statement of Economic
Interests and completing ethics training every two years.
The First Amended Bylaws provide at §10.2 that a status report on Board FPPC
compliance shall be submitted annually to the Board.
Staff will provide a status report using the Board FPPC Compliance Tracker Table
at the final Board meeting of each calendar year.
Recommended Board Action
1. Informational, no action necessary.

By

___________________________________
Tim Carson
Program Director
Regional Water Management Foundation

71 of 72

AGENDA ITEM 6.3.1

2021 MGA BOARD
FPPC COMPLIANCE TRACKER

Form 700
2020 Filing

AB 1234
Ethics Training
Current
Due

Ethics Code
SqCWD Ethics
Policy
Date Provided

Board Members

Curt Abramson
David Baskin
Justin Cummings
Zach Friend
Bruce Jaffe
Jon Kennedy
Jim Kerr
Manu Koenig
Tom LaHue
Robert Marani
Marco Romanini

3/3/2021

2/25/2021

2/25/2023

4/13/2021

3/16/2021

7/27/2020

7/27/2022

n/a

2/4/2021

3/25/2021

3/25/2023

n/a

3/1/2021

2/2/2021

2/2/2023

n/a

3/11/2021

2/2/2021

2/2/2023

n/a

3/3/2021

2/2/2021

2/2/2023

4/13/2021

2/18/2021

2/2/2021

2/2/2023

4/13/2021

3/1/2021

2/18/2021

2/18/2023

n/a

1/24/2021

2/2/2021

2/2/2023

n/a

3/18/2021

3/11/2020

3/11/2022

n/a

3/3/2021

2/2/2021

2/2/2023

n/a

John Benich

3/15/2021

2/2/2021

2/2/2023

n/a

Rachel Lather

3/8/2021

2/2/2021

2/2/2023

n/a

Doug Engfer

2/3/2021

7/25/2020

7/25/2022

n/a

Robert Schultz

3/18/2021

2/2/2021

2/2/2023

4/13/2021

Allyson Violante

3/26/2021

6/14/2021

6/14/2023

n/a

Board Alternates
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